
 
 
 

May 28, 2024 Regular Board Meeting – 6:30 p.m. 
 
 

 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
The following order of business may be changed by majority vote of the Board at any meeting.     

 

 Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices        24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, Michigan 48036 
 

 
   * Indicates Board Action Needed   ** Indicates Roll Call Vote Needed 

 
A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call  
B. *Approval of Agenda for the May 28, 2024 Regular Board Meeting 
C. Presentations (Strategic Plan #2) 

1. Elementary/Middle School Art Student Recognition 
2. Valedictorian and Salutatorian Recognition 
3. Military, Navy and Army Student Recognition 
4. L’Anse Creuse High School – North MSBOA Student Recognition 

*****************************************BREAK******************************************* 
D. Hearing of School District Patrons 

Please note: The Board will provide 30 minutes for public comment and speakers will be asked to limit their comments to 5 minutes.  If you did 
not have a chance to speak, the Board will provide additional time at the end of the meeting for public comment. 

E. ** Consent Agenda  
Please note: Unless removed from the Consent Agenda, items identified within the Consent Agenda will be acted on at one time.  

1. Budget Report 
2. Quarterly Budget Update 
3. Payment Registers 
4. Bid Award Recommendations 
5. Purchases 
6. Overtime Report 
7. Summary of Investments 
8. Summary of Wire Transfers 
9. Accounts Payable Check Register Approval Reminder 
10. Employment Recommendations 
11. Student Travel Requests 
12. Board Meeting Minutes 

a. April 15, 2024 Committee of the Whole Minutes 
b. April 22, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 

F. Superintendent’s Report (Strategic Plan #3) 
1. District Update 

G. Business Office 
1. *Recommendation for Custodial Supply Award 
2. *Recommendation to Accept Form L-4029 
3. *Resolution to Request a Truth-In-Budget Hearing 
4. *Food Service Program Recommendation 

H. Technology  
1. *Technology Student Device Recommendation 

I. Other Matters 
1. *MISD Budget Resolution 
2. *July Board Meeting Date 
3. Facility Naming Discussion 

J. Human Resources 
1. *AFSCME Tentative Agreement 
2. *Assistant Superintendent for Business and Operations Recommendation 
3. *Green Elementary Principal Recommendation 

K. Hearing of School District Patrons Follow-up 
L. Board Member Comment 
M. *Adjournment  



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE  

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 
 
 

E.1. 
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley  
 
Board Meeting: May 28, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Budget Report 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
This report provides the Board with a monthly expenditure report, by fund, for fiscal year 2023-
2024 displaying the original total budgeted expenditures, actual month-to- date expenditures, 
actual year-to-date encumbrances, and the remaining balance of unexpended expenditures in 
both dollar amounts and by percentage (%). 

 
 
 
Current Status: 
Attached is the Budget Report as of April 30, 2024. 

 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends 
that the Board motion to approve the Budget Report as presented. 
 

 
 
RMO/jbh 
 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


 5/06/24  10.36.37                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  04/30   FISCAL PERIOD 10   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         1

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  5/06/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

11 GENERAL FUND

 111 Elementary Instruction                  29,071,854.00    2,202,454.12   18,987,259.87    7,160,536.61    2,924,057.52   10.05 %
 112 Middle/Jr. High                         13,209,087.00    1,054,673.08    9,167,019.71    3,491,363.82      550,703.47    4.16 %
 113 High School                             19,396,009.00    1,792,551.10   13,498,263.87    4,653,141.63    1,244,603.50    6.41 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                    342,226.00          104.71      168,808.93             .00      173,417.07   50.67 %
 122 Special Education                       10,356,517.00      835,174.79    7,131,593.29    2,301,338.50      923,585.21    8.91 %
 125 Compensatory Education                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 127 Career & Tech Education                  2,754,618.00      205,699.36    1,953,472.21      600,272.96      200,872.83    7.29 %
 211 Truancy/Absenteeism Serv                   261,432.00       26,897.99      227,183.96        6,290.55       27,957.49   10.69 %
 212 Guidance Services                        1,371,125.00       23,885.28      221,749.97        4,374.28    1,145,000.75   83.50 %
 213 Health Services                            172,317.00       28,750.08      276,021.54       62,695.61      166,400.15-  96.56-%
 214 Psychological Services                     924,915.00       60,100.92      521,980.69      192,386.53      210,547.78   22.76 %
 215 Speech/Audiology Services                1,706,088.00      104,188.43      974,419.97      371,072.14      360,595.89   21.13 %
 216 Social Work Services                     1,812,606.00      110,993.96      953,292.11      390,926.02      468,387.87   25.84 %
 218 Teacher Consultant                         552,712.00       36,056.84      327,769.67      121,672.66      103,269.67   18.68 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                 1,227,383.00      101,727.42      729,256.87       25,566.30      472,559.83   38.50 %
 221 Improv of Instruction                      844,608.00      119,506.76      949,513.06      310,473.29      415,378.35-  49.18-%
 222 Educational Media Service                  780,189.00       71,289.17      580,442.54       57,930.91      141,815.55   18.17 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                  1,380,052.00      122,665.28    1,106,617.64      208,773.89       64,660.47    4.68 %
 229 Other Instr Staff Srvices                  119,116.00       12,664.96       99,827.26       16,057.39        3,231.35    2.71 %
 231 Board of Education                         252,468.00       14,635.96      149,721.44             .00      102,746.56   40.69 %
 232 Executive Admin                            725,052.00       62,440.78      547,778.70       82,742.99       94,530.31   13.03 %
 241 Office of Principal                      8,596,566.00      749,423.01    6,515,027.20    1,254,671.62      826,867.18    9.61 %
 252 Fiscal Services                          1,462,700.00      141,239.30    1,147,722.96      157,449.87      157,527.17   10.76 %
 257 Internal Services                            3,000.00           78.01-       1,205.30             .00        1,794.70   59.82 %
 259 Other Business Services                     41,900.00        1,805.39       20,560.66             .00       21,339.34   50.92 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                 12,761,015.00      988,756.94   10,086,895.04      291,404.31    2,382,715.65   18.67 %
 266 Security Services                           28,654.00          364.81        3,315.00             .00       25,339.00   88.43 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                     6,266,862.00      562,604.21    5,204,633.76      299,678.74      762,549.50   12.16 %
 282 Communication Services                     119,340.00        9,447.87      102,338.07       21,276.91        4,274.98-   3.58-%
 283 Staff Services                           1,351,465.00      109,277.00    1,108,288.39      102,038.39      141,138.22   10.44 %
 284 Support Services Tech                    2,041,332.00      168,606.19    1,736,332.36      244,898.91       60,100.73    2.94 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                           436,153.00       18,616.82      398,256.74       17,608.59       20,287.67    4.65 %
 299 Other Support Services                       9,000.00             .00             .00             .00        9,000.00  100.00 %
 371 Non-Public Schl Pupils                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 492 Prior Period Adj/Non-Mat                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 624 TRANSFER OUT                                      .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

11 GENERAL FUND                    * TOTAL  120,378,361.00    9,736,524.52   84,896,568.78   22,446,643.42   13,035,148.80   10.82 %

12 ATHLETIC FUND

 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                           .00             .00           33.00             .00           33.00-    .00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                      2,500.00          553.30        2,540.51             .00           40.51-   1.62-%
 266 Security Services                                 .00             .00       10,042.92             .00       10,042.92-    .00 %
 284 Support Services Tech                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 293 Athletic Activities                      5,309,272.00      320,851.43    4,070,623.63    2,055,972.22      817,323.85-  15.39-%

12 ATHLETIC FUND                   * TOTAL    5,311,772.00      321,404.73    4,083,240.06    2,055,972.22      827,440.28-  15.57-%



 5/06/24  10.36.37                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  04/30   FISCAL PERIOD 10   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         2

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  5/06/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

14 STATE GRANT FUND

 111 Elementary Instruction                   1,070,029.00       29,235.51-     276,871.45       82,487.31      710,670.24   66.41 %
 112 Middle/Jr. High                                   .00        6,329.87-            .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 113 High School                                       .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 118 Pre-school                                 917,918.00       50,260.39      571,128.42        5,788.53      341,001.05   37.14 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 122 Special Education                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 125 Compensatory Education                   3,515,148.00      308,056.78    2,776,034.79      807,388.81       68,275.60-   1.94-%
 127 Career & Tech Education                     83,100.00             .00       82,950.00             .00          150.00     .18 %
 131 Adult/Cont Ed Basic                        184,763.00       14,742.42      142,890.17       32,158.93        9,713.90    5.25 %
 132 Adult/Cont Ed Secondary                    152,042.00             .00        9,067.00             .00      142,975.00   94.03 %
 211 Truancy/Absenteeism Serv                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 212 Guidance Services                        3,022,762.00      232,330.84    1,422,796.29      849,011.13      750,954.58   24.84 %
 213 Health Services                            160,293.00       23,783.43       63,783.62       82,170.86       14,338.52    8.94 %
 216 Social Work Services                       871,541.00       44,569.32      376,733.54      166,718.43      328,089.03   37.64 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                   387,353.00      116,821.68      330,454.28       60,776.14        3,877.42-   1.00-%
 221 Improv of Instruction                      209,988.00       14,455.93      116,118.35       34,482.49       59,387.16   28.28 %
 222 Educational Media Service                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 225 Technology Assisted Inst                       470.00             .00          216.00             .00          254.00   54.04 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                    344,516.00       24,212.35      261,758.28       41,879.96       40,877.76   11.86 %
 227 Academic Stu Assessment                     12,309.00             .00       12,308.64             .00             .36     .00 %
 229 Other Instr Staff Srvices                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 231 Board of Education                                .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 232 Executive Admin                                   .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 233 Grant Writer/Procurement                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 241 Office of Principal                               .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 249 Other School Admin                         558,504.00       46,175.43      373,073.22      152,772.70       32,658.08    5.84 %
 252 Fiscal Services                             17,000.00        1,236.02       13,430.42        2,390.64        1,178.94    6.93 %
 257 Internal Services                              783.00             .00          481.50             .00          301.50   38.50 %
 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                    166,653.00        5,354.38       74,829.06       26,056.25       65,767.69   39.46 %
 266 Security Services                          331,644.00       35,418.55      275,631.43       23,556.21       32,456.36    9.78 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                        50,237.00        7,000.00       11,457.75             .00       38,779.25   77.19 %
 281 Plan, Research & Dev                         1,600.00             .00          362.26             .00        1,237.74   77.35 %
 282 Communication Services                         450.00             .00             .00             .00          450.00  100.00 %
 283 Staff Services                               1,175.00             .00          550.00             .00          625.00   53.19 %
 284 Support Services Tech                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                            67,265.00        6,477.07       58,418.97        1,949.60        6,896.43   10.25 %
 289 Other Central Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 291 Pupil Activities                               541.00             .00          536.04             .00            4.96     .91 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                    12,111.00          176.83          640.83             .00       11,470.17   94.70 %
 331 Community Activities                        19,843.00        1,194.39        6,281.12             .00       13,561.88   68.34 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                      8,667.00        1,578.45        8,132.55             .00          534.45    6.16 %
 371 Non-Public Schl Pupils                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 391 Other Community Services                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 411 Payments Oth K-12/In Stat                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                   13,644.00             .00        4,973.86             .00        8,670.14   63.54 %
 611 FUND MOD - GENERAL FUND                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

14 STATE GRANT FUND                * TOTAL   12,182,349.00      898,278.88    7,271,909.84    2,369,587.99    2,540,851.17   20.85 %



 5/06/24  10.36.37                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  04/30   FISCAL PERIOD 10   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         3

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  5/06/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

15 FEDERAL GRANTS

 111 Elementary Instruction                     364,356.00       29,475.91      194,785.09      102,065.15       67,505.76   18.52 %
 112 Middle/Jr. High                            227,550.00       25,159.62      124,560.35       46,126.64       56,863.01   24.98 %
 113 High School                                 50,158.00             .00       50,158.01             .00             .01-    .00 %
 118 Pre-school                                  67,512.00             .00             .00             .00       67,512.00  100.00 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                    439,366.00             .00       17,717.31             .00      421,648.69   95.96 %
 122 Special Education                        2,546,504.00      166,299.77    1,539,154.11      597,026.63      410,323.26   16.11 %
 125 Compensatory Education                   1,269,516.00       54,278.37      429,584.55      153,755.62      686,175.83   54.05 %
 127 Career & Tech Education                     98,460.00        6,600.57       76,093.67            8.43       22,357.90   22.70 %
 131 Adult/Cont Ed Basic                         82,903.00        9,122.11       62,779.11       29,188.40        9,064.51-  10.93-%
 132 Adult/Cont Ed Secondary                    109,925.00        8,494.17       74,809.28       32,156.12        2,959.60    2.69 %
 211 Truancy/Absenteeism Serv                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 212 Guidance Services                          554,582.00        2,876.04      645,855.83            2.81       91,276.64-  16.45-%
 214 Psychological Services                     192,321.00       19,896.25      151,346.64       47,190.23        6,215.87-   3.23-%
 215 Speech/Audiology Services                   69,182.00        3,541.52       69,760.88             .00          578.88-    .83-%
 216 Social Work Services                       117,530.00        7,882.05       68,450.84       28,790.00       20,289.16   17.26 %
 218 Teacher Consultant                         581,993.00       44,736.22      367,670.37      164,969.71       49,352.92    8.47 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 221 Improv of Instruction                      867,087.00       52,254.42      316,059.97      134,092.21      416,934.82   48.08 %
 222 Educational Media Service                    3,324.00             .00             .00             .00        3,324.00  100.00 %
 225 Technology Assisted Inst                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                    165,730.00       12,204.57      104,812.29       43,564.52       17,353.19   10.47 %
 227 Academic Stu Assessment                      3,500.00             .00        3,500.00             .00             .00     .00 %
 229 Other Instr Staff Srvices                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 231 Board of Education                           2,000.00             .00             .00             .00        2,000.00  100.00 %
 232 Executive Admin                                   .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 241 Office of Principal                               .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 252 Fiscal Services                             48,702.00        3,775.84       38,814.99        7,392.03        2,494.98    5.12 %
 257 Internal Services                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                    262,768.00      116,602.10      262,767.50             .00             .50     .00 %
 266 Security Services                            8,767.00          545.52        5,170.96             .11        3,595.93   41.01 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                        39,224.00             .00        4,344.00             .00       34,880.00   88.92 %
 281 Plan, Research & Dev                         3,801.00             .00        3,874.00             .00           73.00-   1.92-%
 282 Communication Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 283 Staff Services                                 260.00             .00          260.00             .00             .00     .00 %
 284 Support Services Tech                             .00             .00             .00      823,200.00      823,200.00-    .00 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                            74,064.00             .00       70,839.95             .00        3,224.05    4.35 %
 289 Other Central Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 331 Community Activities                       184,052.00       10,785.04       49,836.80       37,650.07       96,565.13   52.46 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                           .00            4.37             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 361 Welfare Activities                          13,070.00             .00        1,031.39             .00       12,038.61   92.10 %
 371 Non-Public Schl Pupils                      81,300.00        3,870.83       16,807.38             .00       64,492.62   79.32 %
 391 Other Community Services                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 411 Payments Oth K-12/In Stat                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 611 FUND MOD - GENERAL FUND                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

15 FEDERAL GRANTS                  * TOTAL    8,529,507.00      578,405.29    4,750,845.27    2,247,178.68    1,531,483.05   17.95 %



 5/06/24  10.36.37                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  04/30   FISCAL PERIOD 10   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         4

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  5/06/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

25 CAFETERIA

 252 Fiscal Services                              3,200.00        6,153.16       48,222.24       11,514.76       56,537.00- 766.78-%
 259 Other Business Services                     55,000.00        1,266.83       12,283.65             .00       42,716.35   77.66 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                     56,405.00        2,421.90       38,102.62          652.76       17,649.62   31.29 %
 266 Security Services                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 297 Food Services                            5,275,769.00      462,046.67    4,103,570.95      661,897.57      510,300.48    9.67 %
 411 Payments Oth K-12/In Stat                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 611 FUND MOD - GENERAL FUND                    200,000.00             .00             .00             .00      200,000.00  100.00 %

25 CAFETERIA                       * TOTAL    5,590,374.00      471,888.56    4,202,179.46      674,065.09      714,129.45   12.77 %

26 COMMUNITY EDUCATION FUND

 259 Other Business Services                     33,696.00        3,853.57       37,562.38             .00        3,866.38-  11.47-%
 261 Operating Bldg Services                      3,250.00             .45        1,547.71             .00        1,702.29   52.37 %
 283 Staff Services                                    .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                   277,626.00       13,714.44      208,949.37        3,210.52       65,466.11   23.58 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                    186,801.00       86,974.50      542,001.43        6,562.12      361,762.55- 193.66-%
 391 Other Community Services                   198,224.00             .00      164,392.76             .00       33,831.24   17.06 %

26 COMMUNITY EDUCATION FUND        * TOTAL      699,597.00      104,542.96      954,453.65        9,772.64      264,629.29-  37.82-%

27 PRESCHOOL FUND

 118 Pre-school                                 442,670.00       36,755.40      330,138.22        1,033.42      111,498.36   25.18 %
 241 Office of Principal                               .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                     90,900.00        2,442.53       47,204.91        5,009.58       38,685.51   42.55 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                     4,700.00          533.75        3,297.11             .00        1,402.89   29.84 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                    536,656.00       26,837.92      382,304.90       29,917.43      124,433.67   23.18 %

27 PRESCHOOL FUND                  * TOTAL    1,074,926.00       66,569.60      762,945.14       35,960.43      276,020.43   25.67 %

29 STUDENT/SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUNDS

 296 Oth Stu/Schl Activity Exp                    2,424.00          209.56        2,333.44-            .00        4,757.44  196.26 %

29 STUDENT/SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUNDS   * TOTAL        2,424.00          209.56        2,333.44-            .00        4,757.44  196.26 %

31 2004 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

31 2004 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

32 2005 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT



 5/06/24  10.36.37                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  04/30   FISCAL PERIOD 10   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         5

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  5/06/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

32 2005 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

33 2006 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

33 2006 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

34 2015 SWAPTION (FORMERLY 2008 S

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 634 Fund Modification                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

34 2015 SWAPTION (FORMERLY 2008 S  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

35 2021 REFUNDER

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00   10,145,039.50   11,335,429.05             .00   11,335,429.05-    .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

35 2021 REFUNDER                   * TOTAL             .00   10,145,039.50   11,335,429.05             .00   11,335,429.05-    .00 %

36 2017 REFUNDER SERIES A- DEBT R

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

36 2017 REFUNDER SERIES A- DEBT R  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

37 2015 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00    5,100,031.25    5,658,979.29             .00    5,658,979.29-    .00 %

37 2015 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00    5,100,031.25    5,658,979.29             .00    5,658,979.29-    .00 %

38 2012 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 635 Fund Mod Fund 35                                  .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

38 2012 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %



 5/06/24  10.36.37                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  04/30   FISCAL PERIOD 10   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         6

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  5/06/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

39 2023 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00    3,494,500.00    4,480,906.11             .00    4,480,906.11-    .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 634 Fund Modification                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 637 Fund Modification                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

39 2023 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00    3,494,500.00    4,480,906.11             .00    4,480,906.11-    .00 %

41 CAPITAL PROJECTS CHESTERFIELD

 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 451 Site Acquisition Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 459 Othr Facilities Acq & Con                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 644 OPERATING TRANSFER OUT                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

41 CAPITAL PROJECTS CHESTERFIELD   * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

42 23 MILE AND NORTH AVE SALE OF

 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 451 Site Acquisition Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 459 Othr Facilities Acq & Con                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 644 OPERATING TRANSFER OUT                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

42 23 MILE AND NORTH AVE SALE OF   * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

43 CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

 451 Site Acquisition Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 459 Othr Facilities Acq & Con                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 611 FUND MOD - GENERAL FUND                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

43 CAPITAL PROJECT FUND            * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

44 BLD & SITE 2002 SERIES 2

 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 451 Site Acquisition Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 459 Othr Facilities Acq & Con                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 644 OPERATING TRANSFER OUT                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

44 BLD & SITE 2002 SERIES 2        * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %



 5/06/24  10.36.37                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  04/30   FISCAL PERIOD 10   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         7

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  5/06/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

45 BLD & SITE 2005 SERIES I

 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 451 Site Acquisition Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 644 OPERATING TRANSFER OUT                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

45 BLD & SITE 2005 SERIES I        * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

46 BLD & SITE 2008

 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                  647,733.00      144,613.97      626,941.70             .00       20,791.30    3.20 %
 644 OPERATING TRANSFER OUT                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 645 FUND MOD-2005 CAP PROJ                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

46 BLD & SITE 2008                 * TOTAL      647,733.00      144,613.97      626,941.70             .00       20,791.30    3.20 %

47 B & S 2010 SERIES A TAXABLE

 456 Bldg Improvments Services                   84,405.00        2,955.20       73,635.73             .00       10,769.27   12.75 %

47 B & S 2010 SERIES A TAXABLE     * TOTAL       84,405.00        2,955.20       73,635.73             .00       10,769.27   12.75 %

48 B & S 2010 SERIES B BABS

 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

48 B & S 2010 SERIES B BABS        * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

62 SCHOLARSHIP FUND

 298 Oth Priv Purpose Trust Ex                         .00             .00       18,340.07             .00       18,340.07-    .00 %

62 SCHOLARSHIP FUND                * TOTAL             .00             .00       18,340.07             .00       18,340.07-    .00 %

81 SPDI INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

81 SPDI INTERNAL SERVICE FUND      * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

82 Health Care Stabilization Inte

 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

82 Health Care Stabilization Inte  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %



 5/06/24  10.36.37                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  04/30   FISCAL PERIOD 10   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         8

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  5/06/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

83 Compensated Absence Internal S

 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

83 Compensated Absence Internal S  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

** GRAND TOTALS  154,501,448.00   31,064,964.02  129,114,040.71   29,839,180.47    4,451,773.18-   2.88-%
 *BUDGET # 01 Working                                   WORKING



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

     
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

Hilary E. Dubay   Amelia A. Servial    Sharon L. Ross         Terri M. Spencer Mary L. Hilton Adam D. Lipski Shane W. Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

  
 

E.2. 
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley  
 
Board Meeting: May 28, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Quarterly Budget Update 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
The purpose of the Comparative Statement is to compare the current to date revenues 
and expenditures to the year-to-date revenues and expenditures of the prior year.  Also 
displayed is the current year Board approved budget and the year-to-date projected 
budget. 
 
 
Current Status: 
The Quarterly Budget Update as of March 31, 2024 is attached. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends 

that the Board motion to approve the Quarterly Budget as presented. 

 

 
RMO/jbh 
 

 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


Overview of the General Fund Comparative Statement 

As of March 31, 2024 

Revenue 

Total revenue for the period ending March 31st was $80,888,290. Local revenue was favorable 

and is due to increased property tax collections and earnings on investments. State revenue 

was favorable due to increases in state aid which includes new categorical payments for 

educator compensation program and enrollment stabilization. The county millage was 

favorable by$ 165,271. Other financing sources were unfavorable due to the timing of Special 

Education tax received from MISD.

Expense 

The general fund expenses have increased compared to last year by $5,076,270. Expenses for 

the Basic Programs and Added Needs are unfavorable due to the teacher wage increase 

effective July 1 along with steps and increased retirement rate and benefits. The Added Needs 

also includes the renovation/refresh of the auto garage at Pankow, paid with funding for CTE. 

The unfavorable variance in Instructional Staff was due to the addition of the elementary math 

specialists and the increase in wages. School Administration expenses have decreased on the 

general fund due to the staffing put on grants this year. Business expenses have decreased 

compared to last year due to capital outlay for copiers in 2023. The increase in Operation and 

Maintenance expenses are for the roofing projects. The increase for Transportation costs were 

due to an addition of a dispatcher for the department along with the increase of homeless 

transportation expenses. The Athletic expenses were unfavorable to last year due to the 

replacement of the track and fields at the high schools. Community Service expenses have 

increased due to the Early Childcare and SACC expenses that were funded by grants last year. 

Summary 

Overall general fund revenue exceeded expenses by $420,124 through March. 



3rd Qtr

Original

BUDGET Actual Remaining Prior Year

DESCRIPTION 2023/2024 3/31/2024 Balance 03/31/23

REVENUE:

  Local $ 20,227,607 $ 20,459,437 $ 231,830                $ 19,114,367
  State 93,542,997 53,363,382 (40,179,615)          51,587,868
  County Millage 5,214,000 5,102,328 (111,672)               4,937,057
  Other Financing Sources 2,380,000 1,963,143 (416,858)               2,252,701
    Total Revenue $ 121,364,604 $ 80,888,290 $ (40,476,314) $ 77,891,993

EXPENDITURES:

  Instruction:
    Basic Programs 62,382,810 37,064,952 25,317,858           36,793,605
    Added Needs 13,091,288 8,044,191 5,047,097             7,085,415
  Support Services:
    Pupil 8,057,677 3,739,074 4,318,603             3,791,617
    Instructional Staff 3,126,136 2,410,307 715,829                1,830,957
    General Administration 898,375 620,423 277,952                662,765
    School Administration 8,600,822 5,765,604 2,835,218             6,521,465
    Business 1,446,745 1,060,231 386,514                1,240,784
    Operation and Maintenance 12,931,731 9,159,428 3,772,303             8,313,386
    Transportation 6,228,447 4,642,030 1,586,417             4,540,153
    Central Administration 3,804,216 3,039,268 764,948                3,131,824
    Other Support - Athletics 4,744,969 3,749,772 995,197                1,193,067
    Community Services 1,198,075 1,172,885 25,190                  286,858

      Total Expenditures $ 126,511,291 $ 80,468,166 $ 46,043,125 $ 75,391,896

Revenue in excess of (less than)

   Expenditures $ (5,146,687) $ 420,124 $ 5,566,811 $ 2,500,097

County Millage

FY24 Actual YTD $ 5,102,328
FY21-FY23 14,405,903

$ 19,508,231
(6,210,000)

$ 13,298,231Estimated Balance Budget Stabilization

General Fund

L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT (CASH BASIS)

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES BY STATE FUNCTION CODE

Quarterly General Fund statement ending 03/31/24

Estimated expense for Literacy Specialists through FY24



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

BUSINESS OFFICE 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
  ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  

  BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

Beth Disbrow 
   DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300  
586.783.6312 FAX 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross   Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY   TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

E.3.
Initiator: Rochelle M. O’Malley 

Board Meeting: May 28, 2024 

Agenda Item:  Payment Registers 

 Board Action Required  CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other    _______________________ 

Background: 
The Payment Register for All Funds is presented to the Board of Education each month 
for review, per the Consent Agenda. All funds for each check run for the month are 
summarized and totaled by fund and check run.  The detail documents are included with 
the signatures of two Board members.  

Current Status: 
The Payment Register for All Funds are presented as of Aril 30, 2024, as follows: 

• April 3, 2024

• April 17, 2024

• Purchase Card Reports for March 2024 (reviewed)

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends that 
the Board motion to approve the Payment Registers as presented. 

RMO/jbh 



































































































































Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                      
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 E.4.      
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley 
 
Board Meeting: May 28, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Bid Award Recommendations  
 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other:  ______________________ 

 
 

Background: 
The award of bids and Requests for Proposal require the approval of the Board of Education.   
 

 
Current Status: 
As of April 30, 2024, no recommendations meet the requirements.  
 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration is presenting for 

informational purposes only. 

 
 
RMO/jbh 
 



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

E.5. 
 
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley 
 

Board Meeting: May 28, 2024 
 

Agenda Item:  Purchases 
 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 

Background: 
During the normal course of business, district personnel will purchase items needed to administer the 
business operations of the schools or administrative offices.  In order to provide a review process of the 
purchases, the board has established a policy that all purchases in excess of $10,000 from the building 
and site fund and general fund purchases in excess of the state’s competitive bid threshold (currently at 
$29,572.00) be reported to the board on a monthly basis. 
 

Current Status: 
As of April 30, 2023, there are no purchases that meet the Board requirements. 
 

Fund Vendor Description Amount 

    

 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration is presenting for informational 
purposes only. 
 

 
 
RMO/jbh 



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 

   

 E.6.  

  
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley 
 
Board Meeting: May 28, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Overtime Report 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
This report provides the Board with a monthly overtime variance report, by hours, for fiscal year 
2023-2024, which displays the current month’s actual paid overtime hours for the current year 
in comparison with the same month’s actual paid overtime hours for the previous year.  
Additionally, this report displays the current year’s overtime hours on a year-to-date basis and 
the total overtime hours incurred for the previous 2023 fiscal year.   

 
 
Current Status: 
The report for April 30, 2024 has been reviewed by the respective administrator of each 
building/department.  
 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends 
that the Board motion to approve the Overtime Report as presented. 

 
RMO/jbh 
 



April April Difference FY2024 FY2023

2023-24 2022-23 Over (Under)

Year-to- 

Date Total OT

Operations & Maintenance:     

Custodians 280.53 541.08 (260.55)        4,110.41              5,246.02 

Food & Nutrition 5.73 1.40 4.33 170.32 117.30

Grounds 1.08 6.81 (5.73) 297.70 533.75

Maintenance 16.09 38.92 (22.83) 268.52 378.87

Warehouse 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.94 22.41

Transportation - Bus Drivers 323.40 99.90 223.50        3,202.73              2,301.02 

Transportation - Mechanics 53.60 9.60 44.00 250.03 219.55

Transportation - Dispatch/Secretary 0.00 10.00 (10.00) 3.50 126.25

Business Office:

Payroll 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11.08

Technology

Clerical 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.00

Buildings:

Curriculum/Athletics/Swim Mgmt 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.75 13.04

Elementary Secretary 4.01 10.28 (6.27) 11.05 23.87

Secondary Secretary 2.20 0.00 2.20 4.70 53.08

Elementary Administrative Aide 0.00 7.67 (7.67) 0.00 25.89

Programs & Other:

Aides Instructional & Band 0.00 15.82 (15.82) 47.01 184.03

Aides Noninstructional - Noon Aide 44.25 49.93 (5.68) 404.60 418.35

Aides Noninstructional - Supervisory 7.30 4.11 3.19 7.30 34.16

Aides Special Ed 0.00 4.78 (4.78) 21.93 55.47

Child Care-Secretary/Teacher 0.00 4.55 (4.55) 1.50 131.10

SDC/SACC 77.19 74.47 2.72 458.61 731.96

     Total           815.38           879.32                  (63.94)        9,284.60            10,640.20 

 

L’ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OVERTIME HOUR REPORT

for Fiscal Year 2023/2024



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

  

E.7. 
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley 
 
Board Meeting: May 28, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Summary of Investments 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
Part of fiscal management is to invest available cash funds in order to earn income for 
the district.  As investing does include risk, both interest rate risk and credit risk, the 
board has established a policy that a report on investments be provided on a monthly 
basis. 
 
 
Current Status: 
The report reflected in the document is for the time period as of April 30, 2024 and 
includes the investing institution, type of investment, amount invested, interest rate as 
well as which fund made the investment. 
 
 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends 
that the Board motion to approve the Summary of Investments as presented. 
  
RMO/jbh 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary of investments as of: April 30, 2024  

 

   

Institution Type  Amount Rate Date 

Purchased 

Due Date Fund Number 

of Days 

 

JPMorgan Chase 

 

Checking 

 

$15,390,939.67 

 

N/A 

 

Varies 

 

Immediate 

 

GF 

 

- 

        

JPMorgan Chase Checking $577,969.94 N/A Varies Immediate  IF - 

        

JPMorgan Chase 

 

Checking $20,798,286.94 N/A Varies Immediate DF - 

Fifth Third Bank Depository $3,899,409.54 N/A Varies Immediate  GF - 

        

Fifth Third Bank Depository $1,919,918.41 N/A Varies Immediate  IF - 

        

Fifth Third Bank Depository $1,654,631.25 N/A Varies Immediate  CF - 

        

Fifth Third Bank 

 

Checking 

 

$381,560.26 N/A N/A Immediate 2010 B&S 

 

- 

 

Bank of America Checking $2,385.99 N/A N/A Immediate  2008 - 

      B&S - 

 

MILAF Investment $17,922.12 N/A N/A Immediate 2008 B&S 

 

- 

MILAF 

 

MILAF 

 

Investment 

 

Investment 

$5,221,420.73 

 

$3,133,480.59 

N/A 

 

N/A 

N/A 

 

N/A 

Varies 

 

Varies 

GF 

 

IF 

- 

 

- 

MILF Investment $1,011,427.53 N/A N/A Varies CF - 

MILAF Investment $172,500.54 N/A N/A Varies Scholarship 

Fund 

- 

        

NOTE:        

State Aid Payment –  

April 22, 2024 

Deposited to JPMorgan 

Chase                                      

 $9,464,218.45  N/A    

 

B&S = Building & Site 

CF = Cafeteria Fund 

DF = Debt Fund 

GF = General Fund 

 IF = Internal Fund 

  

 

  

 

 Rates as of April 30, 2024: 
Federal Reserve  

     Non-Asset Backed     30 days       5.30 

          60 days       N/A 

     Asset Backed         30 days       5.36 

          60 days       5.37 

 

Note: n.a. indicates trade data insufficient to 

support calculation of the particular rate. 



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

  

 E.8. 

 
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley 
  
Board Meeting: May 28, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Summary of Wire Transfers 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
In order to conduct financial management transactions, wiring money to and from the 
district’s bank accounts is part of the business office operations.  To provide oversight of 
this process a monthly report is prepared by the accountant.  The report includes the 
date of transaction, the bank accounts involved in the transactions, the reason for the 
wire transfer, the amount and the fund requesting the transfer. 
 
 
Current Status: 
The report submitted is as of April 30, 2024, and summarizes the wire transfers for the 
General, Debt, Cafeteria and Trust & Agency funds. 
 
 
 
Future Direction (Comments or Motion)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends 
that the Board motion to approve the Summary of Wire Transfers as presented. 
 

 
RMO/jbh 

 



 

L’ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

Summary of General, Debt, Cafeteria and Trust & Agency Funds Wire Activity  

April 1 through April 30, 2024 

 

  1 of 1  

1 4/04/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

BMO Purchasing Card Activity through March 27th ($179,162.93) Wire GF 

2 4/04/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Bank of America 4/05/24 PR Direct Deposit ($1,592,961.04) Wire GF 

3 4/04/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

MSGCU 4/05/24 Net Payroll Deductions ($315,135.64) Wire GF 

4 4/05/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Wells Fargo Bank 4/05/24 Annuities Funding ($140,396.96) Wire GF 

5 4/18/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Bank of America 4/19/24 PR Direct Deposit ($1,454,675.14) Wire GF 

6 4/18/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

MSGCU 4/19/24 Net Payroll Deductions ($295,295.43) Wire GF 

7 4/19/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Wells Fargo Bank 4/19/24 Annuities Funding ($139,558.13) Wire GF 

8 04/22/24 JPMorgan Chase 

DF 

Huntington National 

Bank 

2015 Refunding Bond (General Obligation 

Unlimited Tax) 

 

($5,100,031.25) Wire DF 

9 04/22/24 JPMorgan Chase 

DF 

UMB Bank 2021 Refunding Bonds ($10,145,039.50) Wire DF 

10 04/22/24 JPMorgan Chase 

DF 

UMB Bank Refunding 2023 Bonds ($3,494,500.00 Wire DF 

 



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE 

                                      
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Hilary Dubay    Sharon. Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

        

             

         E.9. 
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley 
 
Board Meeting: May 28, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Accounts Payable Check Register 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
The accounts payable check listing is reviewed by members of the board of education. They may review 
the paperwork, if necessary, and each will sign the check register. 

 
 
Current Status: 
The following Board Members are assigned to approve the Accounts Payable Check Register on the 
following dates: 
 

Review Dates Approvers 

May 30 & 31, 2024 S. Sellers & A. Lipski 

June 13 & 14, 2024 A. Servial & H. Dubay 

July 1 & 2, 2024 A. Doss & A. Lipski 

July 11 & 12, 2024 A. Servial & H. Dubay 
 

 
*The Purchase Card Report for April 2024 will be included with the May 29, 2024 check run. 
 

 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This status is provided as a schedule reminder.   

 
RMO/jbh 



Erik J. Edoff 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 
HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

Dr. Greg Dixon 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

Anita Dzieszkowski 
COORDINATOR FOR 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300  
586.783.6311 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam D. Lipski Hilary E. Dubay Sharon L. Ross Amelia A. Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane W. Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE 
 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 
in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 
Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 
Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER 
AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Initiator:  Greg Dixon 
  
Board Meeting:  May 28, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Employment Recommendations 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 
Background:   
The attached list contains candidates who have been recommended for employment in the position/building that 
is indicated, as well as current employees who are being recommended for a change in some aspect of their 
employment status.  
 
Current Status:   
The Human Resources department has received, from the appropriate administrator, a recommendation for the 
action listed along with any required documentation. Interviews and reference checks, if applicable, have been 
completed.  The Employment Recommendations are being submitted for approval by the Board. 
 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion:   
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the Employment Recommendations as presented. 
 
 
GD/af 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E.10. 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


Employment Recommendations

 May 28, 2024

Page 1

# * Name Assignment Remarks Effective Degree/Step

INSTRUCTIONAL

1 Carr-Medina, Carroll Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $40.00

2 Clay, Amy Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $40.00

3 Clyne, Jennifer Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $40.00

4 Dudzinski, Sheri Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $40.00

5 Ebury, Terry Freshman Baseball Coach, L'Anse Creuse 

High School - North

Replaces Jason Schutt 4/18/2024 Per Supplemental 

Contract

6 Geschwind, Allison Community Education Cheerleading 

Coach, L'Anse Creuse Middle School - 

North

Replaces Amanda Hicks 4/23/2024 $1,750.00

7 Gorney, Jennifer Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $40.00

8 Griffith, Nicole Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $40.00

9 Henderson, Jacob Summer Day Camp North - Site Director, 

Joseph M. Carkenord Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $20.07 

10 Heugh, Stephanie Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $40.00

11 Hlavaty, Stacy Summer Day Camp Counselor, Joseph M. 

Carkenord Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $12.86

12 Hoag, Tracey Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $40.00

13 Hough, Rosa Student Council Advisor, L'Anse Creuse 

High School - North

Resignation 6/14/2024

14 Kawalec, Catherine Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $40.00

15 Kellstrom, Michelle Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $40.00



Employment Recommendations

 May 28, 2024

Page 2

16 Knotts, Mandi Extended Day Teacher, L'Anse Creuse 

Middle School - South

Temporary Position 5/6/2024 $35.00

17 Kwapik, Jillian Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $40.00

18 Lenard, Payton Extended School Year Teacher, Harry L. 

Wheeler Community Center & 

Administrative Offices

Temporary Position 6/17/2024 $40.00

19 Lentine, Janel Teacher, Francis A. Higgins Elementary 

School

Leave of Absence (Second 

Request)

2024-2025 

School Year

20 Livingston, Codi Summer Mini Camp Teacher, Anna Mae 

Burdi Center

Seasonal Position 7/8/2024 $23.85

21 * Mattarella, Sarah Teacher, L'Anse Creuse Middle School - 

Central

Replaces Michelle Moceri 5/20/2024 MA Step 10 ($70,758)

22 McCarthy, Laura ESL Instructor, DiAnne M. Pellerin Center Resignation 6/13/2024

23 Misuraca, Emily Teacher, L'Anse Creuse Middle School - 

North

Leave of Absence (First 

Request)

2024-2025 

School Year

24 Rea, Alexis National Junior Honor Society Sponsor, 

L'Anse Creuse Middle School - East

Replaces Suzanne Hickman 8/19/2024 Per Supplemental 

Contract

25 Roskopp, Kellee Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $40.00

26 Ruell, Sara Summer Day Camp Counselor, Marie C. 

Graham Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $13.89 

27 Salter, Brenda 8th Grade Girls Volleyball Coach, L'Anse 

Creuse Middle School - North

Replaces Samantha Moucha 5/9/2024 Per Supplemental 

Contract

28 Samborsky, Alysia Summer School Coordinator, L'Anse 

Creuse High School

Seasonal Position 6/17/2024 $3,500 (split)

29 Sedick, Anthony Interim Director for Elementary Education, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center & 

Administrative Offices 

Replaces Laura Dixon
(on leave)

8/5/2024 Per Non-Affiliated 

Administrator 

Handbook

30 Shimkus, Amanda Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $40.00



Employment Recommendations

 May 28, 2024

Page 3

31 Strait, Ayesha Teacher, Atwood Elementary School Retirement (28 years, 1 

month)

6/14/2024

32 Turak, Heather Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $40.00

33 VanCamp, Michael Interim Assistant Superintendent for 

Human Resources, Harry L. Wheeler 

Community Center & Administrative 

Offices 

Replaces Greg Dixon
(on leave)

8/5/2024 Per Non-Affiliated 

Administrator 

Handbook

34 White, Zachary Elementary Summer Explorers Teacher, 

Green Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $40.00

1 Bemiss, Kaitlyn Summer Explorers Nurse, Green 

Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $26.25 

2 Bienewicz, Joshua Medical Aide, Tenniswood Elementary 

School

Resignation 6/13/2024

3 * Blanchard, Jonathan Kindergarten Aide, Donald J. Yacks 

Elementary School

Replaces Michelle Quinn 5/9/2024 $11.48 

4 * Blanchard, Jonathan Summer Day Camp Counselor, Marie C. 

Graham Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $12.36 

5 Cain, Alexandrea Summer Day Camp South - Assistant Site 

Director, Marie C. Graham Elementary 

School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $15.97 

6 Courterier, Wayne Custodian, L'Anse Creuse Middle School - 

North

Retirement (23 years, 4 

months)

7/1/2024 $19.82 

7 Crider, Dalton Custodian, Francis A. Higgins Elementary 

School

Resignation 5/16/2024

8 Crooker, Gabrielle Summer Day Camp Counselor, Marie C. 

Graham Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $13.38 

9 Deceuninck, Kristie Summer Day Camp Counselor, Joseph M. 

Carkenord Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $12.36

10 Faris, Austin Administrative Assistant for Human 

Resources, Harry L. Wheeler Community 

Center

Resignation 6/30/2024

Non-Instructional



Employment Recommendations

 May 28, 2024

Page 4

11 Forrey, Laura Temporary Summer Enrollment Clerk, 

Harry L. Wheeler Coomunity Center & 

Administrative Offices

Seasonal Position 7/8/2024 $17.69 

12 Friedmann, Sabrina Summer Day Camp Counselor, Marie C. 

Graham Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $12.86 

13 Hamming, Lori Class IV Secretary to the Principal, 

Tenniswood Elementary School

Retirement (16 years, 6 

months)

6/24/2024

14 * Hundey, Jason Boys Varsity Assistant Track Coach, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

Replaces Kellie Kahl 4/18/2024 Per Supplemental 

Contract

15 Jacques, Timothy Summer Day Camp Counselor, Joseph M. 

Carkenord Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $13.38 

16 * Johnson, Princess Mia Varsity Girls Assistant Track Coach, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

Replaces Emily Jobes 4/18/2024 Per Supplemental 

Contract

17 * Kelsey, Jessica Custodian, South River Elementary School Replaces Eric Courterier 5/13/2024 $16.28 

18 * Knorp, Caitlyn Assistant Varsity Softball Coach, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

New Position 4/15/2024 Per Supplemental 

Contract

19 LaMay, Denise Class IV Secretary to the Principal, Atwood 

Elementary School

Retirement (33 years) 6/30/2024

20 Lemanski, Scott Custodian, Atwood Elementary School Retirement (11 years, 7 

months)

6/11/2024

21 Malaga, Sharon Elementary Summer Explorers Clerk, 

Green Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $18.93 

22 Markov, Christine Paraprofessional, L'Anse Creuse Middle 

School - Central

Retirement (28 years) 6/13/2024

23 Marr, Tammy Paraprofessional, Tenniswood Elementary 

School

Resignation 6/13/2024

24 * McKay, Matthew Computer Technician, Larry F. Brender 

Support Services Center

Replaces Corey Scheffler 5/8/2024 $45,625.34

25 Meyer, Cheryl Summer Day Camp South - Site Director, 

Marie C. Graham Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $21.10

26 Mullen, Marian Class I Cook/Cashier, L'Anse Creuse High 

School

Resignation 5/3/2024



Employment Recommendations

 May 28, 2024

Page 5

27 O'Malley, Kayla Summer Day Camp North - Assistant Site 

Director, Joseph M. Carkenord Elementary 

School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $15.95

28 Pallach, Lynn Class IV Secretary for Early Childhood 

Programs, Anna Mae Burdi Center

Retirement (22 years) 8/2/2024

29 Pearson, Brielle Summer Day Camp Counselor, Joseph M. 

Carkenord Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $12.88

30 Piejak, Kara Summer Day Camp Counselor, Joseph M. 

Carkenord Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $12.36

31 Pilarski, Michael Network Administrator, Larry F. Brender 

Support Services Center

Retirement (17 years) 9/15/2024

32 Polito, Jacob Groundskeeper, Larry F. Brender Support 

Services Center

Resignation 4/25/2024

33 Quantz, Julie Summer Day Camp Counselor, Joseph M. 

Carkenord Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $13.38 

34 Rogers, Andrianna Food & Nutrition Floater, Larry F. Brender 

Support Services Center

Resignation 2/1/2024

35 Shea, Constance Class II Office Clerk, Tenniswood 

Elementary School

Retirement (10 years, 3 

months)

6/30/2024

36 Stager, Jay Custodian, L'Anse Creuse Middle School - 

East

Retirement (26 years, 11 

months)

5/31/2024

37 * Sturza, Alexander Custodian, L'Anse Creuse Middle School - 

Central & L'Anse Creuse Early Childhood 

Center (split)

Replaces Darrel Holland 4/22/2024 $16.28

38 Swiben, Lynette Summer Records Clerk, DiAnne M. Pellerin 

Center

Seasonal Position 6/27/2024 $21.67

39 Vincent, Shelby Summer Mini Camp Aide, Anna Mae Burdi 

Center

Seasonal Position 7/8/2024 $16.37

40 Weir, Johnathan Summer Day Camp Counselor, Joseph M. 

Carkenord Elementary School

Seasonal Position 6/3/2024 $12.36

41 Wrubel, Alicia Class III Secretary to the Associate 

Principal, L'Anse Creuse High School

Resignation 5/3/2024

*New Employee to the District

Updated items are in bold and italicized.



Employment Recommendations

 May 28, 2024

Page 6

Years of service reflect LCPS service, only, and does not reflect purchased service or service in other school districts.



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
Adam Lipski Hilary Dubay Sharon Ross Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY  TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or 
marital status in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, 
L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries 
related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

Erik J. Edoff 
SUPERINTENDENT 

 
Lisa E. Montpas 

ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 
FOR CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION 

 
Kimberly Rawski 

DIRECTOR FOR 
SECONDARY EDUCATION 

 
Laura Dixon 
DIRECTOR FOR 

ELEMENTARY EDUCATION 
 
 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300 
586.783.6312 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

 

 

DEPARTMENT OF CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION 
 
 

 
 
Initiator:  Lisa Montpas   
 
Board Meeting: May 28, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Student Travel Requests 
 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
According to Board Policy Article VIII, Section 19 Field Trips and Other District Sponsored Trips “Board 
approval is required for field trips and other District-sponsored trips which are planned to take students 
out of the United States or overnight.” 
 
Current Status: 
The following student travel requests have been received for approval.  These student travel trips are 
educational trips, aligned to curriculum, chaperoned and organized by School Personnel: 
 

1. Student travel is requested for 125 L’Anse Creuse High School North Band students to travel to Echo 
Grove Camp in Leonard, Michigan on August 11, 2024 and return on August 16, 2024.  The trip is 
requested by Dan Griffith.  The students will learn their 2024 show.  There will be 2 staff attending; D. 
Griffith and S. Oranchak and 40 parents to chaperone the trip. 

2. Student travel is requested for 140 L’Anse Creuse High School Band students to travel to Blue Water 
Campground in Lexington, Michigan on August 11, 2024 and return on August 17, 2024.  The trip is 
requested by Ryan Malburg.  The trip is the annual Marching Lancers camp.  There will be 2 staff; R. 
Malburg and W. McCray, and 40 parents to chaperone the trip.   

3. Student travel is requested for 20 L’Anse Creuse High School JV Volleyball players to travel to Ferris State 
University in Big Rapids, Michigan on July 15, 2024 and return on July 17, 2024.  The trip is requested by 
Megan Buckman.  The camp is a high school team camp. There will be 2 staff; M. Buckman and M. Kitts to 
chaperone the trip. 

4. Student travel is requested for 20 L’Anse Creuse High School Varsity Volleyball players to travel to Ferris 
State University in Big Rapids, Michigan on July 17, 2024 and return on July 19, 2024.  The trip is 
requested by Megan Buckman.  The camp is a high school team camp. There will be 2 staff; M. Buckman 
and M. Kitts to chaperone the trip. 

5. Student travel is requested for 140 L’Anse Creuse High School Band students to travel to University of 
Toledo in Toledo, Ohio on September 14, 2024 and return on September 15, 2024.  The trip is requested 
by Ryan Malburg.  The students will compete at BOA Toledo regional.  There will be 2 staff; R. Malburg 
and W. McCray and 30 parents to chaperone the trip. 

E.11. 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


Student Travel Request 
May 28, 2024  Page 2 

6. Student travel is requested for 12 L’Anse Creuse High School Varsity Boys Basketball players to travel to 
Traverse City St. Francis in Traverse City, Michigan on June 27, 2024 and return on June 28, 2024.  The trip 
is requested by G. Woods. The trip is a basketball skills camp.  There will be 2 staff; G. Woods and P. 
Morgan and 2 parents to chaperone the trip. 

7. Student travel is requested for 24 L’Anse Creuse High School Boys JV and Varsity Basketball players to 
travel to Saginaw Valley State University in Saginaw, Michigan on June 24, 2024 and return on June 25, 
2024.  The trip is requested by G. Woods.  The trip is a basketball skills camp. There will be 2 staff; G. 
Woods and P. Morgan and 2 parents to chaperone the trip. 

8. Student travel is requested for 25 L’Anse Creuse High School students to travel to Rome, Paris and Madrid 
on June 19, 2025 and return on June 27, 2025.  The trip is requested by E. Lesniak.  Students will visit 
Italian and Spanish countries and expand their knowledge of different cultures. There will be 2 staff; E. 
Lesniak and L. Pierri and 2 parents to chaperone the trip. 

 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments): 
Administration is recommending approval for the above student travel requests. 



L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 
 

 
 
 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING MINUTES 

APRIL 15, 2024 – 6:30 P.M. 
 
The Board of Education of the L’Anse Creuse Public Schools district convened a Committee of the Whole on 
Monday, April 15, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. at the Harry L. Wheeler Community Center an Administrative Offices, 
located at 24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, Michigan. 
 
A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call 
 

Mr. Lipski, President called the Committee of the Whole meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Roll Call 

 
Present:  Mr. Adam Lipski, President 

Mrs. Amy Servial, Treasurer 
Mrs. Sharon Ross, Secretary 
Mr. John Da Via, Trustee 
Mr. Al Doss, Trustee 

 
 Absent:  Mrs. Hilary Dubay, Vice President 
   Mr. Shane Sellers, Trustee 
 

Also present: Mr. Erik Edoff, Superintendent 
  Ms. Lisa Montpas, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum & Instruction  

Ms. Rochelle O’Malley, Assistant Superintendent for Business & Operations 
Dr. Greg Dixon, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources 
Ms. Laura Dixon, Director for Elementary Education 

  Mr. Donald Gratton, Director for Operations 
Mr. Brandon Streng, Director for Technology 
Mrs. Nicolette Trask, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent 
Employees and Patrons of the District 

 
B. Hearing of School District Patrons 
 

Mr. Jody Lesinski, parent in the district, addressing the Board regarding the tennis courts at L’Anse 
Creuse High School.   
 
Ms. Natalie Lyczynski, parent in the district, addressed the Board regarding the upcoming Bond 
Proposal. 
 

C. Department Updates 
 
The Curriculum, Business, Human Resources, Support Services, and Technology Departments 
provided an informational update for the Board on the progress of work and projects occurring within 
their department. Discussion followed. 
 

D. Superintendent’s Report 
 
D.1. Mr. Edoff provided a district update and share an update on the state budget.  He also shared that he 

continues to reflect on student activities and the positive district happenings that are being organized 
throughout the district and run with the student’s assistance. 

E.12.a. 



L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING MINUTES FOR APRIL 15, 2024       PAGE 2 
 
 
E. Curriculum and Instruction Office 
 
E.1.  Ms. Montpas provided Student Travel Requests that will be presented to the Board for approval at the 

next Regular Board Meeting. Discussion followed. 
 
F. Business & Operations Office 
 
F.1. Ms. O’Malley provided information on the Consent Agenda Items that will be presented for approval 

at the next Regular Board Meeting.   
 
G. Human Resources Office 
 
G.1.  Dr. Dixon provided information regarding the Employment Recommendations that will be presented 

for approval at the next Regular Board Meeting. Discussion followed. 
 
G.2. Dr. Dixon provided the Assistant Superintendent for Business & Operations Job Description for the 

board’s review.  Discussion followed. 
 
H. Curriculum & Instruction 
 
H.1. Ms. Dixon provided information regarding a recommendation for Elementary Math that will be 

presented for approval at the next Regular Board Meeting.  Discussion followed. 
 
I. Technology Department 
 
I.1. Mr. Streng provided information regarding an the Elementary 1:1 Student Technology Devices 

Recommendation that will be presented at the next Regular Board Meeting.  Discussion followed.  
 
J. Other Matters 
 
J.1  Mr. Edoff provided information on Second Reading of Policy Recommendations that will be 

presented at the next Regular Board Meeting.  Discussion followed. 
 
K. Hearing of District Patrons Follow-up 

 
No patrons addressed the Board at this time.   
 

L. Board Member Comment 
 
Mrs. Ross reminded everyone of the end of year calendar of events.  She also stated that the Spring 
Board Workshop needed to be set.  Discussion followed. 
 
Mr. Lipski acknowledged the passing of Lisa Downey and stated that it was a great loss for the 
district.   

 
M. Adjournment 

 
Motion by Mr. Doss, supported by Mrs. Servial, to adjourn the meeting.  The meeting was adjourned 
at  7:21 p.m.   
 
 

 



L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING MINUTES FOR APRIL 15, 2024     PAGE 3 
 
 

Yes:  All 
No: None 
Motion carried. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
Sharon Ross, Secretary 
Board of Education 



 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
APRIL 22, 2024 – 6:30 P.M. 

The Board of Education of the L’Anse Creuse Public Schools district convened a Regular Board Meeting on 
Monday, April 22, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. at the Harry L. Wheeler Community Center an Administrative Offices, 
located at 24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, Michigan. 

 
A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call 

 
Mr. Adam Lipski, President, called the Regular Board Meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 
Roll Call 

 
Present: Mr. Adam Lipski, President 

Mrs. Hilary Dubay, Vice President 
 Mrs. Sharon Ross, Secretary 

Mr. John Da Via, Trustee 
Mr. Al Doss, Trustee 
Mr. Shane Sellers, Trustee 

 
Absent: Mrs. Amelia Servial, Treasurer 
 

Also present: Mr. Erik Edoff, Superintendent 
Ms. Lisa Montpas, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum & Instruction 
Dr. Greg Dixon, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources 
Ms. Rochelle O’Malley, Assistant Superintendent for Business & Operations 
Ms. Laura Dixon, Director for Elementary Education  
Mr. Donald Gratton, Director for Operations 
Mr. Brandon Streng, Director for Technology  
Ms. Nancy Supanich, Director for Special Education 
Mrs. Nicolette Trask, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent 
Employees and Patrons of the District 

 
B. Approval of Agenda 

 
Motion by Mrs. Dubay, supported by Mr. Doss, to approve the April 22, 2024 Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda as presented.   
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
Motion carried. 

 
C. Presentations 
 
C.1.  Mr. Edoff and Mrs. Dubay, along with students from L’Anse Creuse High School and L’Anse Creuse 

High School-North, recognized the Charity Week advisors for their work and support they provide 
behind the scenes to make the events a success. Mrs. Dubay presented staff with a Certificate of 
Excellence from the Board and Administration. 
 

C.2.  Mr. Edoff and Mrs. Dubay recognized DECA teams at L’Anse Creuse High School and L’Anse Creuse 
High School – North for being earning recognition at the State level competition and advancing to the 
National Competition on April 26, 2024. Mrs. Dubay presented the student with a Certificate of 
Excellence from the Board and Administration. 

E.12.b. 



L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF APRIL 22, 2024  PAGE 2 
 
 

C.3. Mr. Edoff and Mrs. Dubay recognized Science Olympiad students from L’Anse Creuse Middle School 
Central, L’Anse Creuse Middle School – East, L’Anse Creuse Middle School – North and the Science 
Olympiad Team from L’Anse Creuse Middle School – South for their success in the 2024 Science 
Olympiad Tournament in March and also to the students who will advance to the State competition.  
Mrs. Dubay presented the students with a Certificate of Excellence from the Board and Administration. 

 
C.4.   Mr. Edoff and Mrs. Dubay recognized students from L’Anse Creuse High School, L’Anse Creuse High 

School – North and L’Anse Creuse Middle School – North for receiving awards at the Anton Art Center 
Secondary Art Show.  Mrs. Dubay presented the students with a Certificate of Excellence from the 
Board and Administration.   

 
 Mrs. Dubay congratulated all of the students and staff for their accomplishments.  She thanked them for 

their dedication and the time they put into their achievements and the wonderful support they give to 
their schools. 

 
 Mr. Sellers congratulated the DECA students and staff, and wished them well in their upcoming 

competition at Nationals.  
 

Mr. Lipski called a break from 6:56-7:04 p.m. 
 
D. Hearing of School District Patrons 

 
The following residents and parents address the Board regarding the upcoming bond proposal. 

• Edward Trabilsy 
• Jody Lesinski 
• Janice Young 
• Nora Trabilsy 
• Ashley Karpinsky 

 
E. Consent Agenda 

 
Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mrs. Dubay, to approve the following Consent Agenda items as 
presented: 

E.1. Budget Report 
E.2. Quarterly Budget Update 
E.3. Payment Registers 
E.4. Bid Award Recommendations 
E.5. Purchases 
E.6. Overtime Report 
E.7. Summary of Investments 
E.8. Summary of Wire Transfers 
E.9. Accounts Payable Check Register Schedule 
E.10. Employment Recommendations 
E.11. Student Travel Requests 
E.12. March 18, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

Roll Call Vote: 
Yes: Sellers, Dubay, Da Via, Ross, Doss, Lipski 
No: None 
Motion carried. 
 

 



L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF APRIL 22, 2024   PAGE 3 
 
 
F. Superintendent’s Report 
 
F.1  Mr. Edoff provided a district update and shared that as the end of the year approaches, there are many 

celebrations and great activities planned over the next several weeks.  He encouraged attendance and 
stated that the end of the year events showcase students’ success and celebrates both students and staff.   

 
F.2.  Mr. Edoff presented information on the recommendation to Expulsion Student #0349 for violation of 

3.3 of the Student Code of Conduct.  He shared that the parent has requested a closed session with the 
Board at this time. 

 
 Motion by Mr. Doss, supported by Mrs. Ross, to move into Closes Session pursuant to OMA Section 

8(b) for the Expulsion Recommendation for Student #0349 as presented at 7:28 p.m. 
 
 Roll Call Vote: 
 Yes:  Doss, Ross, Da Via, Dubay, Lipski, Sellers 
 No: None 
 Motion carried. 
 
 Motion by Mr. Doss, supported by Mr. Da Via to reconvene to Regular Session at 8:04 p.m. 
 
 Roll Call Vote: 
 Yes: Doss, Da Via, Sellers, Dubay, Ross, Lipski 
 No: None 
 Motion carried. 
 
 Motion by Mrs. Dubay, supported by Mr. Sellers, to approve the Resolution to expel Student #0349 for 

violation of Section 3.3. of the L’Anse Creuse Student Code of Conduct as presented, as long as the all 
conditions discussed are met, allowing for a possible reinstatement.  Discussion followed. 

 
 Roll Call Vote: 
 Yes: Dubay, Sellers, Ross, Doss, Da Via, Lipski 
 No: None 
 Motion carried. 
 
G. Curriculum and Instruction Office 

 
G.1. Ms. Montpas presented the Elementary Math Recommendation for the Board’s consideration. 

 
Motion by Mrs. Dubay, supported by Mr. Doss, to approve the Elementary Math recommendation to 
purchase Bridges Materials for grades K-5 in the amount of $293,751.17 as presented. 
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
Motion carried. 
 

H. Technology Department 
 

H.1. Mr. Streng presented information on the Elementary 1:1 Student Device Recommendation for the 
Board’s consideration. 
 
Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mr. Doss, to approve the Recommendation to purchase Apple 
iPad devices through Apple in the amount of $1,178,646.00 as presented for the Elementary 1:1 
Technology program. 



L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF APRIL 22, 2024   PAGE 4 
 
Discussion followed. 
 
Yes: All 
No: None 
Motion carried. 
 

I. Other Matters 
 

I.1. Mr. Edoff presented from the Board Policy Committee the Second Reading of the following policy and 
operating procedures additions: 

• Article XI. Facilities and Operations, Section 19 Logo Design and Development 
• Board Operating Procedures, 4.0 Meetings – 4.2.6 Student Recognitions and 4.2.7. Staff 

Recognitions 
 
Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mrs. Dubay, to approve the Second Reading of Policy 
Recommendations as presented. 
 

 Yes: All 
 No: None 
 Motion carried. 

 
J. Hearing of School District Patrons Follow Up 
 
 No patrons addressed the Board at this time. 
 
K. Board Member Comment 

 
Mrs. Dubay shared that L’Anse Creuse High School is having an Art Show on Wednesday at 6:00 p.m. 
and encouraged attendance.  She also expressed her support of the upcoming Bond Proposal for the district 
and stated that it is greatly needed after being fiscally responsible for the last 19 years since the last bond.  
Ms. Dubay also shared that the district lost a pillar in the community at L’Anse Creuse High School with 
the passing of Lisa Downey. 
 
Mr. Doss congratulated all of the students honored at the meeting and thanked the students and staff for 
their hard work and support.  He also expressed his support of the upcoming Bond Proposal for the district 
and stated that he is fully committed to make informed decisions on every bond project that comes before 
the Board. 
 
Mr. Da Via shared that College Night is taking place this week he is looking forward to attending.  He 
also shared that today is Earth Day and he is proud that our middle schools have successful programs and 
are named Green, Emerald or Evergreen schools. 
 
Mrs. Ross expressed her sadness on the passing of Lisa Downey, longtime teacher and coach in the 
district.  She also shared that she enjoyed the wonderful recognition of the student and staff during the 
meeting and thanked everyone for the work that went into Charity Week.  Mrs. Ross shared that the 
L’Anse Creuse Foundation held their first Mother/Son Dance and it was a great success, and reminded 
everyone of the upcoming MCSBA dinner meeting.  Mrs. Ross also expressed her support of the Bond 
Proposal, stating that the district needs this bond, that it has been 19 years since the last bond and it is 
time to move forward with another bond. 
 
 
 
 

 



L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF APRIL 22, 2024  PAGE 5 
 
 
Mr. Lipski expressed that the loss of Lisa Downey was felt by the entire community.  He has thanked 
everyone for their efforts in the Charity week donations.  Mr. Lipski shared that he supports the district’s 
upcoming bond proposal and stated that every dollar that is spent is voted on by the Board for all projects.  
He looks forward to the community voting and if the bond passes, the opportunity to use the funds in the 
best and most effective manner for is best for the district. 

 
L. Closed Session – Negotiations and Employee Matter 

 
Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mr. Da Via, to move into Closed Session pursuant to the Open 
Meeting Act Section 8(a,c) for Negotiations and an Employee Matter at 8:28 p.m. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes: Sellers, Da Via, Doss, Ross, Dubay, Lipski 
No: None 
Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mr. Doss to reconvene to Regular Session at 9:29 p.m. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes: Sellers, Doss, Ross, Dubay, Lipski, Da Via 
No: None 
Motion carried. 
 

M. Adjournment 
 
 Motion by Mrs. Dubay, supported by Mr. Sellers, to adjourn the meeting at 9:30 p.m.   
 
 Yes: All 

No: None 
Motion carried. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Sharon L. Ross, Secretary 
Board of Education 
SLR:nt 



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

BUSINESS OFFICE 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
  ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  

  BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

Beth Disbrow 
  DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE  

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300  
586.783.6312 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon L. Ross   Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY   TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

G.1.
Initiator: Rochelle M. O’Malley 

Board Meeting: May 28, 2024 

Agenda Item:  Recommendation for Custodial Supply Award 

 Board Action Required  CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other:  ______________________ 

Background: 
During the normal course of business, district personnel will purchase items needed to administer the 
business operations of the schools or administrative offices.  On April 24, 2023, the Board of Education 
awarded a one-year extension for District-Wide Custodial Supply with Nichols Paper and Supply Co.  This 
was originally a three-year contract from August 1, 2020, through June 30, 2023, that was extended to 
June 30, 2024.  

Current Status: 
The Business Office has solicited consortium pricing through Omnia Partners. Nichols, now a division of 
ImperialDade provided competitive pricing through this process. The pricing bid tabulation is attached.  
ImperialDade’s total for accessories, chemicals, green, floor, hand soap and dilution is approximately 
annually $174,000.  Non-bid items would be 20% off the Omnia Partners listing.  The full-term expiration 
of the contract is May 31,2025. 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the recommendation for the Custodial 

Supply consortium pricing as presented to ImperialDade through Omnia Partners for an approximate 11 

month total of $159,500 from July 1, 2024 through May 31, 2025. 

RMO/jbh 

http://www.lc-ps.org/




Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE  

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

Hilary E. Dubay   Amelia A. Servial    Sharon L. Ross         Adam D. Lipski Mary L. Hilton Donald R. Hubler Terri M. Spencer 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  

            

G.2. 

 
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley  
 
Board Meeting: May 28, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Recommendation to Accept Form L-4029 (2024 Tax Rate Request) 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background:  
The Board of Education of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools issues form L-4029 (Tax Rate Request) on  
an annual basis. The Tax Rate Request is due to the County Clerk, Equalization Department, and each  
Township Clerk, in order for tax bill preparations. 
 

 
 
Current Status: 
The current form L-4029 for 2024 has been prepared and reviewed by district administration and it’s financial 
advisors.  It is enclosed for signature by the Board of Education President and Secretary. 
 

 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the recommendation to Accept Form       

L-4029 (2024 Tax Rate Request) as presented. 

 

RMO/jbh 
 

 

http://www.lc-ps.org/




Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE  

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Hillary Dubay    Sharon.Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

          G.3. 
 
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley 
 
Board Meeting: May 28, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Resolution to Request a Truth-in-Budget Hearing 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 

Background: 
WHEREAS, 1995 Public Act 40 of the Public Acts of the State of Michigan provides that every local unit of 

government, including a school district, shall hold a public hearing on its proposed budget, notice of such 

hearing to be given by publication in a newspaper of general circulation within such unit at least six (6) 

days before the hearing. 

 
 

Current Status: 
We request that the Secretary of the Board of Education authorize and direct the publishing of said 

notice, to be substantially the form of attached Exhibit A, in a newspaper of general circulation within 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools.  The notice shall be published at least six (6) days before the public hearing 

and shall comply with all requirements of 1995 Public Act 40. 

   

 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the attached resolution requesting to hold 

a Truth-in-Budget Hearing as presented. 

 
 
RMO/jbh 
 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


L’ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING 

ON PROPOSED 2024-2025 BUDGET 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on June 24, 2024, at 6:30 o’clock p.m., at Harry L. 

Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F.V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton 

Township, Michigan, the Board of Education of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools will hold a public 

hearing to consider the District’s proposed 2024-2025 budget. 

The Board may not adopt its proposed 2024-2025 budget until after a public hearing. A 

copy of the proposed 2024-2025 budget, including the proposed property tax millage rate, is 

available for public inspection during normal business hours at Harry L. Wheeler Community 

Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F.V. Pankow Blvd. Clinton Twp., Michigan 48036 

The property tax millage rate proposed to be levied to support the proposed budget will be 

a subject of this hearing.1 

This notice is given by order of the Board of Education. 

_________________________________ 

SHARON ROSS 

SECRETARY 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

1 This sentence must be printed in 11-point boldfaced type as shown. 

https://www.lc-ps.org/


EXHIBIT A 

NOTE:   MUST BE PUBLISHED IN A NEWSPAPER OF GENERAL 

CIRCULATION IN THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AT LEAST SIX DAYS BEFORE 

THE DATE OF HEARING 

L’ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE  

PROPOSED BUDGET FOR THE 2024-2025 SCHOOL YEAR 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on June 24, 2024 at 6:30 o’clock p.m., at Harry L. 

Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F.V. Pankow Blvd., 

Clinton Township, Michigan, the Board of Education of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

will hold a public hearing to consider the district’s proposed 2024-2025 budget. 

The Board may not adopt its proposed 2024-2025 budget until after the public hearing.  A 

copy of the proposed 2024-2025 budget including the proposed property tax millage rate 

is available for public inspection during normal business hours at the Harry L. Wheeler 

Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton 

Twp., Michigan 48036. 

* [11 point THE PROPERTY TAX MILLAGE RATE PROPOSED  

bold faced type] TO BE LEVIED TO SUPPORT THE PROPOSED BUDGET 

WILL BE A SUBJECT OF THIS HEARING 

This notice is given by order of the Board of Education. 

SHARON ROSS 

SECRETARY  

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

https://www.lc-ps.org/


Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

BUSINESS OFFICE 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
         ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
        BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

Beth Disbrow 
          DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Adam Lipski Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross   Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY      TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 
in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 
Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 
Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

Initiator: Rochelle M. O’Malley G.4.
Board Meeting: May 28, 2024 

Agenda Item:  Recommendation for Food Service Operations 

 Board Action Required   CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other:  ______________________ 

Background: 
L’Anse Creuse Public Schools entered into an agreement with Chartwells, effective, July 1, 2019, for the 2019-2020 
school year, with up to four (4) one-year renewals, as approved by the Michigan Department of Education all 
renewals were approved with the last one expiring June 30, 2024.  Based on MDE guidelines the district was 
required to issue an RFP for a food service management company. 

In January, the business office made a presentation reflecting a self-operated food service department compared 
to the utilization of a food service management company.   

Current Status: 
The business office issued an RFP on March 8th. The bid opening was held on March 28th.  We received three bids 
but only two were qualified responses.  The business office performed a review of each bid response.  A 
committee with principals from all three levels as well as two business office staff heard presentations from each 
company. Using the state required bid calculator the company with the most points was Aramark.  Please see 
attached for the bid tab. 

The business office prepared an updated presentation which was shared with the board at the Committee of the 
Whole meeting on May 20, 2024. There are two options for consideration: 

1. Approve the continuation of a food service management company with a director and award the bid
to Aramark.
Or

2. Choose to return to a completely self-operated department and hire a director as a LCPS employee.

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Due to the projected cost savings and common practice of surrounding districts self-operating their food programs, 
Administration is recommending the district move to a self-operating food program for the 2024-2025 school year. 

RMO/jbh 



Food Service Management Company RFP 

    Bid Tabulation Summary 

    May 28, 2024-Board Meeting 

Aramark S.F.E. Southwest Food 
Excellence 

Total Points 96.60 90.65 
Management Fee 3.0% 9.0% 

Administrative Fee 9.0% 15.0% 



24400 F.V. PANKOW BOULEVARD, CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI 48036-1305 586-783-6550 586-783-6556 FAX WWW.LC-PS.ORG 
NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status in its programs, services, 
activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools Administration, 24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, 
Clinton Township, MI 48036, (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 

 

LARRY F. BRENDER SUPPORT SERVICES CENTER 

Erik J. Edoff 
SUPERINTENDENT  

TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT 

Brandon Streng 
DIRECTOR FOR TECHNOLOGY 

Initiator: Brandon Streng  

Board Meeting: May 28, 2024 

Agenda Item:   Technology Elementary 1:1 Student Device Cases & Warranty Recommendation 

 Board Action Required  CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

Background: 
As part of the district’s Elementary 1:1 Pilot program last year, Apple iPads were selected as the 
recommended device for elementary students by the teachers and staff involved in the pilot. In planning for 
the Elementary 1:1 program, the Technology Department submitted an application for the Emergency 
Connectivity Fund (ECF) grant to secure funding for the district’s elementary student devices.  The application 
was approved for only the Apple iPad devices, but not cases or AppleCare warranty.  

Current Status:  
The Technology Department would like approval to enter a lease agreement to purchase cases and AppleCare for 
the 4,009 Apple iPads that were approved at the April 22, 2024 Regular Board Meeting.  Administration will utilize 
part of the reimbursement from the ECF grant program as the first payment of the lease agreement. After the first 
payment, three equal payments of $133,781.85 would be made in July of 2025, 2026, and 2027 to complete the 
lease agreement for a total of $756,791.55. There is no interest as part of the agreement, the district still owns the 
devices, and the agreement can be paid off early.  

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration will recommend the Board motion to approve a lease agreement for Apple iPad cases and 
AppleCare through Apple in the amount of $756,791.55 at the May 28, 2024 Regular Board Meeting, utilizing 
part of the reimbursement from the ECF grant program as the first lease payment. 

H.1.



05/15/2024

Solution Total Payment Date Payment

$756,791.55
0% interest Rate
Start date 6/15 with 1st pmt due 
7/15/24

07/15/2024 $355,446.00
07/15/2025 $133,781.85
07/15/2026 $133,781.85
07/15/2027 $133,781.85

Ownership, affordability, flexibility. 
The Pay-to-Own option helps make it possible to acquire all the equipment needed today through 
predicable and affordable payments over time. Your institution will retain ownership of all 
devices upon final payment. 
Flexible payment options are available to align with your budget, source of funding, 
and lifecycle goals.

We’re here to help.
We deliver lifecycle management with innovative capabilities, just as you’d expect from Apple. 
Please contact your AFS Manager to move forward, or to explore other flexible options.

Tim Guiling
Apple Financial Services
tguiling@apple.com

Pay to Own

The best tools for education. 
The best options for your budget.

Confidential Proposal
L'Anse Creuse School District

TM and © 2023 Apple Inc. All rights reserved. Financing options are for informational purposes only. Nothing herein is a commitment to finance. Apple reserves the right to cancel or change this offer without 
prior notice. You may be responsible for taxes and other charges. Should you choose to lease or finance through Apple Financial Services (AFS), this proposal: (a) is subject to final credit approval and the 
delivery of executed documents (in form and substance satisfactory to AFS); and (b) is not a statement of all terms and conditions of any lease or finance agreement.

Sustainable.
Creating a predictable 
lifecycle plan is an 
important element for 
ensuring a sustainable 
implementation.

Right time.
The right timing can make 
all the difference. We 
provide flexible terms that 
put you in control of when 
to deploy and refresh.

Right tools.
The right tools empower 
your learning environment. 
We build payment plans 
aligned to your budget to 
get the right tools.

Review
Finalize product 
selections and 
payment plan.

Confirm
Provide signer 
contact details, 
and we’ll send 
documentation.

Order
Submit signed 
documentation 
and we’ll place 

your order.



RESOLUTION 
for 

Review and approval of the proposed Macomb Intermediate School District budget 

Whereas, Section 624 of the Revised School Code requires that “Not later than June 1 of each year, 
the board of each constituent district, shall adopt a board resolution expressing its support for or 
disapproval of the proposed intermediate school district budget…” 

Whereas, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, is a constituent district of the Macomb Intermediate 
School District (“MISD”). 

Whereas, the Board of Education of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools during a public meeting has 
reviewed the proposed MISD budget for the next fiscal year. 

Now, therefore, be it resolved as follows: 

1. The Board of Education of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, expresses its approval of and support for
the MISD’s general fund operating budget for the next fiscal year.

2. The Board of Education of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools directs its secretary to forward this
resolution to the secretary of the MISD Board of Education.

AYES:  ______ NAYS:  ________ 

Members_______________________________ Members _______________________________ 

  _______________________________      _______________________________ 

  _______________________________      _______________________________ 

 _______________________________      _______________________________ 

  _______________________________      _______________________________ 

 _______________________________      _______________________________ 

  ________________________________      _______________________________ 

Resolution declared adopted:  __________________, 2024       _______________________________ 
      Sharon Ross, Secretary 
      Board of Education 

I.1.



Erik J. Edoff 
SUPERINTENDENT  

HUMAN RESOURCES 
Dr. Greg Dixon 

ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 
FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

Anita Dzieszkowski 
COORDINATOR FOR 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300  
586.783.6311 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Adam D. Lipski Hilary E. Dubay Sharon L. Ross Amelia A. Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane W. Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE 
 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 
in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 
Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 
Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER 
AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

Initiator: Greg Dixon 

Board Meeting: May 28, 2024 

Agenda Item:  AFSCME 1993 Tentative Agreement 

 Board Action Required  CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

Background:  
The 2020-2023 collective bargaining agreement between the district and AFSCME 1993 was set to expire on 
December 31, 2023. An indefinite extension was agreed to pending negotiations. The parties have negotiated in 
good faith over a number of sessions and a tentative agreement within Board parameters and meeting multiple 
Board goals was reached on May 1, 2024.  

Current Status:   
The union sought and obtained ratification of the tentative agreement by its membership on May 15, 2024. 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion:   
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the Tentative Agreement as presented. 

GD/af 

J.1.

http://www.lc-ps.org/


Erik J. Edoff 
SUPERINTENDENT  

HUMAN RESOURCES 
Dr. Greg Dixon 

ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 
FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

Anita Dzieszkowski 
COORDINATOR FOR 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300  
586.783.6311 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Adam D. Lipski Hilary E. Dubay Sharon L. Ross Amelia A. Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane W. Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE 
 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 
in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 
Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 
Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER 
AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

Initiator: Erik Edoff 

Board Meeting: May 28, 2024 

Agenda Item:  Assistant Superintendent for Business & Operations 

 Board Action Required  CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

Background:  
The Assistant Superintendent for Business & Operations vacancy created as a result of the upcoming retirement of 
Rochelle O’Malley was posted internally through our district application website and externally through Michigan 
Association of Secondary Schools (MASSP), Michigan Association of Superintendents & Administrators (MASA) and 
Michigan Association of Schools Boards (MASB). The position was posted for over three weeks and interviews with 
six candidates out of 10 applicants were conducted in May, with the interview team consisting of Central Office 
Administrators, along with a representative from the MISD. 

Current Status:  
Katherine Konon comes highly recommended from the interview committee. Ms. Konon has a wealth of 
knowledge as it relates to the financial functions of governmental entities; especially, school districts. Ms. Konon 
began her career as an auditor, followed by many years in K-12 education. Throughout her years in public 
education, which began in 2001, Ms. Konon has served in Business Offices as both, a Director and Assistant 
Superintendent. In 2011, Ms. Konon served as an Associate Professor of Accounting at Walsh College, where she 
specialized in and designed an online course in governmental accounting, all while participating in faculty 
governance and college administrative committees. During her most recent years, Ms. Konon has been responsible 
for the oversight of all business office functions, financials, bonds, facilities, and food service. Further, she is 
experienced in providing support on negotiations committees. Ms. Konon holds a Masters of Science Degree in 
Professional Accountancy from Walsh College, her CPA License and CFO Certification. She will be an excellent 
addition to the Business Office. 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion:  
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the recommendation to hire Ms. Katherine Konon 
as the Assistant Superintendent for Business & Operations, and with the Board President’s permission, allow her to 
make a few remarks. 

GD/ad 

J.2.

http://www.lc-ps.org/


Erik J. Edoff 
SUPERINTENDENT  

HUMAN RESOURCES 
Dr. Greg Dixon 

ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 
FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

Anita Dzieszkowski 
COORDINATOR FOR 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300  
586.783.6311 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Adam D. Lipski Hilary E. Dubay Sharon L. Ross Amelia A. Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane W. Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE 
 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 
in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 
Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 
Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER 
AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

Initiator: Greg Dixon 

Board Meeting: May 28, 2024 

Agenda Item:   Green Elementary Principal 

 Board Action Required   CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

Background:  
The Green Elementary Principal vacancy was posted internally through our district application website and 
externally through Michigan Association of Secondary Schools (MASSP) and the Michigan Association of 
Superintendents & Administrators (MASA). The position was posted for three weeks and we received 11 
applications, consisting of nine external candidates and two internal candidates. The applicants’ qualifications 
were screened and four candidates received interviews.  

Current Status:  
Rich Strozewski is the recommended candidate for the Green Elementary Principal position. Mr. Strozewski began 
his career as a teacher in 2005 in Algonac Community Schools. For more than 10 of those years, he taught at the 
elementary level. In 2021, Mr. Strozewski came to L’Anse Cruese Public Schools as a highly regarded and 
recommended teacher. Currently, Mr. Strozewski teaches sixth grade math and science and also serves as a sports 
coach. He has extensive knowledge in school improvement, on-line learning, Response to Intervention, Title I 
requirements, Leader in Me and has successfully completed the LCPS Leadership Academy. Mr. Strozewski holds a 
Master’s Degree in Educational Administration from the University of Michigan and will be an asset to the 
students, staff and community at Green Elementary. 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration is recommending that the Board motion to approve the recommendation for Mr. Rich Strozewski 
as the Principal for Green Elementary, and with the Board President’s permission, allow him to make a few 
remarks. 

J.3.

http://www.lc-ps.org/

	5.28.24 Regular Board Meeting
	E.1. Budget Report
	E.2. Quarterly Budget
	E.3. Payment Registers
	E.4. Bid Award Recommendations
	E.5. Purchases
	E.6. Overtime Report
	E.7. Summary of Investments
	E.8. Summary of Wire Transfers
	E.9. Accounts Payable Check Register Approval Reminder
	E.10. Employment Recommendations
	E.11. Student Travel Requests
	E.12.a. April 15, 2024 COTW Minutes
	COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING MINUTES
	APRIL 15, 2024 – 6:30 P.M.
	B. Hearing of School District Patrons
	C. Department Updates
	D. Superintendent’s Report
	E. Curriculum and Instruction Office
	F. Business & Operations Office
	G. Human Resources Office
	H. Curriculum & Instruction
	I. Technology Department
	I.1. Mr. Streng provided information regarding an the Elementary 1:1 Student Technology Devices Recommendation that will be presented at the next Regular Board Meeting.  Discussion followed.
	J. Other Matters
	K. Hearing of District Patrons Follow-up
	L. Board Member Comment
	M. Adjournment

	E.12.b. April 22, 2024  Regular Meeting Minutes
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES
	A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call
	Roll Call
	B. Approval of Agenda
	C. Presentations
	D. Hearing of School District Patrons
	E. Consent Agenda
	Roll Call Vote:
	F. Superintendent’s Report
	F.1  Mr. Edoff provided a district update and shared that as the end of the year approaches, there are many celebrations and great activities planned over the next several weeks.  He encouraged attendance and stated that the end of the year events sho...
	F.2.  Mr. Edoff presented information on the recommendation to Expulsion Student #0349 for violation of 3.3 of the Student Code of Conduct.  He shared that the parent has requested a closed session with the Board at this time.
	Motion by Mr. Doss, supported by Mrs. Ross, to move into Closes Session pursuant to OMA Section 8(b) for the Expulsion Recommendation for Student #0349 as presented at 7:28 p.m.
	Roll Call Vote:
	Yes:  Doss, Ross, Da Via, Dubay, Lipski, Sellers
	No: None
	Motion carried.
	Motion by Mr. Doss, supported by Mr. Da Via to reconvene to Regular Session at 8:04 p.m.
	Roll Call Vote:
	Yes: Doss, Da Via, Sellers, Dubay, Ross, Lipski
	No: None
	Motion carried.
	Motion by Mrs. Dubay, supported by Mr. Sellers, to approve the Resolution to expel Student #0349 for violation of Section 3.3. of the L’Anse Creuse Student Code of Conduct as presented, as long as the all conditions discussed are met, allowing for a ...
	Roll Call Vote:
	Yes: Dubay, Sellers, Ross, Doss, Da Via, Lipski
	No: None
	Motion carried.
	G. Curriculum and Instruction Office
	H. Technology Department
	H.1. Mr. Streng presented information on the Elementary 1:1 Student Device Recommendation for the Board’s consideration.
	Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mr. Doss, to approve the Recommendation to purchase Apple iPad devices through Apple in the amount of $1,178,646.00 as presented for the Elementary 1:1 Technology program.
	Discussion followed.
	Yes: All
	No: None
	Motion carried.
	I. Other Matters
	I.1. Mr. Edoff presented from the Board Policy Committee the Second Reading of the following policy and operating procedures additions:
	Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mrs. Dubay, to approve the Second Reading of Policy Recommendations as presented.
	Yes: All
	No: None
	Motion carried.

	F.2. Student Expulsion Recommendation #0378
	student expulsion resolution sample for 180 days.pdf
	RESOLUTION FOR STUDENT EXPULSION


	G.1. Recommendation for Custodial Supply Bid Award
	G.2. Recommendation to Accept Form L-4029 (2024 Tax Rate Request)
	G.3. Resolution to Request a Truth-in-Budget Hearing
	H.1. Technology Recommendation
	I.2. MISD Budget Resolution
	J.2. Asst Supt for Business Recommendation.pdf
	Initiator:  Erik Edoff




